
1 
 

 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Omnitrans 
San Bernardino, California 
 
We have audited the financial statements of Omnitrans for the year ended June 30, 2014.  Professional standards 
require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing 
standards, Government Auditing Standards and OMB Circular A-133, as well as certain information related to the 
planned scope and timing of our audit.  We have communicated such information in our engagement letter dated 
May 7, 2014.  Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related 
to our audit. 
 
Significant Audit Findings  
 
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 
 
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies.  The significant 
accounting policies used by Omnitrans are described in Note 1 to the financial statements.  No new accounting 
policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during the year.  We noted no 
transactions entered into by the governmental unit during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative 
guidance or consensus.  All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper 
period.  
 
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on 
management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events.  
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and 
because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected.  The 
most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements were: 
 

 Management’s estimate of investments at fair value.  Changes in fair value that occur during the fiscal 
year are recognized as investment income reported for that fiscal year. 

 Management’s estimate of the risk management liability for incurred but not reported (IBNR) claims is 
based on an actuarial valuation and an 80% confidence level. 

 Management’s estimate of the depreciation of capital assets is based upon the estimated useful lives of the 
related capital assets.   

 
We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop depreciation estimates in determining that they are 
reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 
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Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 
 
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.   
 
Corrected Misstatements 
 
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, 
other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.  
Management has corrected all such misstatements.  As a result of audit procedures, an adjustment to reduce 
current year revenue of approximately $5.7M was proposed and posted by management. 
 
Disagreements with Management  
 
For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a financial 
accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to 
the financial statements or the auditors’ report.  We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during 
the course of our audit. 
 
Management Representations 
 
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management representation 
letter dated December 12, 2014. 
 
Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 
 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters, 
similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations.  If a consultation involves application of an 
accounting principle to the entity’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that 
may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with 
us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts.  To our knowledge, there were no such consultations 
with other accountants. 
 
Other Audit Findings or Issues  
 
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as Omnitrans’ auditors.  However, these discussions 
occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our 
retention.   
 
Other Matters 
 
We applied certain limited procedures to Management’s Discussion and Analysis and the Schedule of Funding 
Progress, which are required supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements.  
Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We did not audit 
the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI. 
 
We were not engaged to report on the Introductory Section or the Statistical Section, which accompany the 
financial statements but are not RSI.  We did not audit or perform other procedures on this other information and 
we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it. 
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Restriction on Use 
 
This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors and management of Omnitrans and is not 
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

 
 
 
Rancho Cucamonga, California 
December 12, 2014 
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT ON 

APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES  

 

 

 

Board of Directors  

Omnitrans 

San Bernardino, California 

 

 

The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) has established the following standards with regard to the data reported 

to it in the Federal Funding Allocation Statistics Form FFA-10 (FFA-10) for the Omnitrans annual National 

Transit Database (NTD) report:   

  

1. A system is in place and maintained for recording data in accordance with NTD definitions.  The 

correct data are being measured and no systematic errors exist.  

 

2. A system is in place to record data on a continuing basis and the data gathering is an ongoing effort.    

 

3. Source documents are available to support the reported data and are maintained for FTA review and 

audit for a minimum of three years following FTA's receipt of the NTD report.  The data are fully 

documented and securely stored.  

 

4. A system of internal controls is in place to ensure the data collection process is accurate and that the 

recording system and reported comments are not altered. Documents are reviewed and signed by a 

supervisor, as required.   

 

5. The data collection methods are those suggested by FTA or meet FTA requirements.  

 

6. The deadhead miles, computed as the difference between the reported total actual vehicle miles data 

and the reported total actual vehicle revenue miles data, appear to be accurate.  

 

7. Data are consistent with prior reporting periods and other facts known about Omnitrans’ operations.  

 

We have applied the procedures described in Attachment 1 of this report, which were agreed to by Omnitrans and 

the FTA and specified in the declarations section of the 2013 Reporting Manual, solely to assist you in evaluating 

whether Omnitrans complied with the standards described above and that the information included in the NTD 

report FFA-l0 form for the year ended June 30, 2014, is presented in conformity with the requirements of the 

Uniform System of Accounts and Records and Reporting System; Final Rule, as specified in 49 CFR part 630, 

Federal Register, January 15, 1993 and as presented in the 2013 Reporting Manual. Omnitrans’ management is 

responsible for Omnitrans’ compliance with those standards and the accuracy of the FFA-10 form. 
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This agreed-upon procedures engagement was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by 

the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.  The sufficiency of these procedures is solely the 

responsibility of those parties specified in this report.  Consequently, we make no representation regarding the 

sufficiency of the procedures described in Attachment 1 either for the purpose for which this report has been 

requested or for any other purpose.  

 

The procedures and findings described in Attachment 1 of this report, which are referenced in order to correspond 

to the 2013 Reporting Manual procedures, were applied separately to each of the information systems used to 

develop the reported vehicle revenue miles (VRM), passenger miles (PM), fixed guideway directional route miles 

(FG DRM), and operating expenses of Omnitrans for the year ended June 30, 2014, and for each of the following 

modes: (1) Motor Bus - directly operated (MBDO), (2) Motor Bus - purchased transportation (MBPT), (3) 

Demand Response - purchased transportation (DRPT) and (4) Rapid Bus Transit – directly operated (RBDO).  

 

We were not engaged to, and did not, conduct an audit, the objective of which would be the expression of an 

opinion on compliance with the procedures noted in attachment 1 or on the FFA-10.  Accordingly, we do not 

express such an opinion.  Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our 

attention that would have been reported to you.  

 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of Omnitrans management, Omnitrans Board of 

Directors and the FTA and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified 

parties.  

 
 

Rancho Cucamonga, California 

January 27, 2015 
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Excerpt from the FTA 2013 Reporting Manual Exhibit 83 - Federal Funding Allocation Data Review - Suggested 

Procedures:  

 

FTA has specified and agreed to a set of procedures for the independent accountant to perform and satisfy the 

requirements of the Federal Funding Allocation data review.  The procedures, to be applied to each applicable 

mode and type of service (TOS) directly operated (DO) and purchased transportation (PT), are:  

 

a. Obtain and read a copy of written procedures related to the system for reporting and maintaining data in 

accordance with the NTD requirements and definitions set forth in 49 Code of Federal Regulations 

(CFR) Part 630, Federal Register, January 15, 1993 and as presented in the 2013 Reporting Manual.  If 

procedures are not written, discuss the procedures with the personnel assigned responsibility for 

supervising the NTD data preparation and maintenance.  

 

Results – We obtained and read a copy of written procedures related to the system for reporting and 

maintaining  data and found them in accordance with NTD requirements and definitions set forth in 49 

CFR Part 630, Federal Register, January 15, 1993 and as presented in the 2013 Reporting Manual. 

  

b. Discuss the procedures with the personnel assigned responsibility for supervising the preparation and 

maintenance of NTD data to determine:  

 

 The extent to which the transit agency followed the procedures on a continuous basis, and  

 Whether they believe such procedures result in accumulation and reporting of data consistent 

with the NTD definitions and requirements set forth in 49 CFR Part 630, Federal Register, 

January 15, 1993 and as presented in the 2013 Reporting Manual.  

 

Results - We inquired regarding Omnitrans’ procedures for the MBDO, MBPT, DRPT and RBDO 

services noting that the asserted procedures were consistently applied.  In addition, based on our 

inquiry with the Planning and Scheduling Manager and the Operations Services Supervisor, 

management asserted that the procedures resulted in the accumulation and reporting of data consistent 

with the NTD definitions and requirements set forth in 49 CFR Part 630, Federal Register, January 15, 

1993 and as presented in the 2013 Reporting Manual. 

 

c. Inquire of same personnel concerning the retention policy that is followed by the transit agency with 

respect to source documents supporting the NTD data, Total Modal Operating Expenses data (F-30, line 

15, column e), Actual Vehicle Revenue Mile and Passenger Miles Traveled (S-10, lines 12 and 20, 

column d).  

 

Results - We inquired with the Planning and Scheduling Manager and the Operations Services 

Supervisor, regarding Omnitrans’ retention policy for NTD data, Total Modal Operating Expenses 

data, Actual Vehicle Revenue Mile and Passenger Miles Traveled.  Per inquiry, the current practice is 

to retain paper and electronic data for at least three years. 
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d. Based on a description of the transit agency's procedures obtained in items a and b above, identify all 

the source documents which are to be retained by the transit agency for a minimum of three years.  For 

each type of source document, select three months out of the year and determine whether the document 

exists for each of these periods.  

 

Results - We inspected the following source documents for each type of service, selected three months 

out of the year and determined that the documents existed for each of these periods: 

 

Type of Service Source Document Months Tested 
MBDO  MBDO Statistics Reports 

(queried from TransTrack 

Manager System database) 

 Passenger Mile Survey 

Summary from Automated 

Passenger Count system GFI 

database 

 Ridership by Trip Reports 

 Trapeze FX Summaries by 

Route 

 Route Plans  

 August 2013, November 

2013 and March 2014. 

 Three years of data 

were noted to be 

archived on Omnitrans’ 

network. 

MBPT  MBPT Statistics Reports 

(queried from TransTrack 

Manager System database) 

 Ridership by Trip Reports 

 Trapeze FX Summaries by 

Route 

 Route Plans  

 Passenger Mile Survey 

Summary  

 Survey Trip Sheets 

 August 2013, November 

2013 and March 2014. 

 Three years of data 

were noted to be 

archived on Omnitrans’ 

network. 

DRPT  DRPT Statistics Reports 

(queried from TransTrack 

Manager System database) 

 Daily Totals from the Trapeze 

Pass system 

 Trip Distance Productivity 

Reports from the Trapeze Pass 

system 

 Driver Manifests generated 

from the Trapeze Pass system 

 Passenger Mile Survey 

Summary  

 Survey Trip Sheets 

 August 2013, November 

2013 and March 2014. 

 Three years of data 

were noted to be 

archived on Omnitrans’ 

network. 

RBDO  DRPT Statistics Reports 

(queried from TransTrack 

Manager System database) 

 Passenger Mile Survey 

Summary from Automated 

Passenger Count system GFI 

 April 2014, May 2014 

and June 2014. 

 The service began 

operating April 2014. 

All data records were 

noted to be archived on 
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database 

 Ridership by Trip Reports  

 Survey Trip Sheets  

 Route schedules published on 

Omnitrans website 

Omnitrans’ network. 

 

e. Discuss the system of internal controls with the person responsible for supervising and maintaining the 

NTD data.  Inquire whether individuals, independent of the individuals preparing source documents and 

posting data summaries, review the source documents and data summaries for completeness, accuracy 

and reasonableness and how often such reviews are performed.  

 

Results - We inquired regarding the system of internal controls noting that each respective mode/type of 

service is being reviewed by personnel independent of the preparation process. On a regular basis data 

from the TransTrack System for the MBDO, MBPT, DRPT and RBDO modes of service are being 

reviewed for completeness and reasonableness by the Planning and Scheduling Manager for the 

MBDO, MBPT and RBDO modes and the Operations Services Supervisor for the DRPT mode. 

 

f. Select a haphazard sample of the source documents and determine whether supervisors' signatures are 

present as required by the system of internal controls.  If supervisors' signatures are not required, 

inquire how the supervisors' reviews are documented.  

 

Results – For the MBDO, MBPT and RBDO modes data is collected by automated systems. The 

collected data is reviewed and approved by a supervisor who documents monthly results and signs off 

on performance reports. For the DRPT mode, we haphazardly chose three test days, examined ten 

Driver Manifests for each of those days, and noted that drivers and supervisors signed the manifests.   

 

g. Obtain the worksheets utilized by the transit agency to prepare the final data that are transcribed onto 

the Federal Funding Allocation Statistics form.  Compare the periodic data included on the worksheets 

to the periodic summaries prepared by the transit agency.  Test the arithmetical accuracy of the 

summarizations.  

 

Results - We obtained the worksheets utilized by Omnitrans to transcribe statistics to the Federal 

Funding Allocation Statistics form and compared the data to summaries without exception.  We tested 

the arithmetical accuracy of the summarizations without exception.   

 

h. Discuss the transit agency's procedure for accumulating and recording Passenger Miles (PM) data in 

accordance with NTD requirements with transit agency staff. Inquire whether the procedure used is (1) 

a 100% count of actual PM or (2) an estimate of PM based on statistical sampling meeting FTA's 95% 

confidence and 10% precision requirements.  If the transit agency conducts a statistical sample for 

estimating PM, inquire whether the sampling procedure is (1) one of the two procedures suggested by 

FTA and described in FTA Circulars 2710.1A or 2710.2A; or (2) an alternative sampling procedure.  If 

the transit agency uses an alternative sampling procedure, inquire whether the procedure has been 

approved by FTA or whether a qualified statistician has determined that the procedure meets FTA's 

statistical requirements.  Note as a negative finding in the report the use of an alternative sampling 

procedure that has not been approved in writing by a qualified statistician.  

 

Results – Sampling was conducted for the MBDO, MBPT and RBDO mode.  We reviewed the sampling 

methodologies and noted that the requirement per Circular 2710.1A is to sample three trips every other 

day. Omnitrans surveyed three trips every other day at a minimum. 
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Sampling was conducted for the DRPT mode.  We reviewed the sampling methodologies and noted that 

the requirement per Circular 2710.2A is to sample a vehicle every eighth day. Omnitrans surveyed one 

vehicle every eighth day at a minimum. 

 

i. Discuss with transit agency staff the transit agency's eligibility to conduct statistical sampling for PM 

data every third year. Determine whether the transit agency meets one of the three criteria that allow 

transit agencies to conduct statistical samples for accumulating PM data every third year rather than 

annually. Specifically:  

 

1. According to the 2010 Census, the public transit agency serves an urbanized area (UZA) of less 

than 500,000 population.  

2. The public transit agency directly operates fewer than 100 revenue vehicles in all modes in 

annual maximum revenue service in any UZA. 

3. The service is purchased from a seller and is included in the transit agency's NTD report.  

 

For transit agencies that meet one of the above criteria, review the NTD documentation for the most 

recent mandatory sampling year (2011) and determine that statistical sampling was conducted and 

meets the 95% confidence and 10% precision requirements.  

 

Determine how the transit agency estimated annual PM for the current report year.  

 

Results – The MBPT and DRPT modes comply with criteria allowing the accumulation of PM data 

every third year.  The current year (2014) is a mandatory sampling year. For the MBPT mode, 

documentation was reviewed for the survey and it was determined that statistical sampling was 

conducted and met the requirements per Circular 2710.1A. For the DRPT mode, we reviewed 

documentation and it was determined that statistical sampling was conducted and met requirements per 

Circular 2710.2A. 

 

j. Obtain a description of the sampling procedure for estimation of PM data used by the transit agency.  

Obtain a copy of the transit agency's working papers or methodology used to select the actual sample of 

runs for recording PM data.  If the average trip length was used, determine that the universe of runs was 

used as the sampling frame.  Determine that the 2014 methodology to select specific runs from the 

universe resulted in a haphazard selection of runs.  If a selected sample run was missed, determine that 

a replacement sample run was randomly selected.  Determine that the transit agency followed the stated 

sampling procedure.  

 

Results – For the MBDO, MBPT, DRPT and RBDO modes we obtained a copy of Omnitrans’ 

methodology used in the statistical sampling to estimate average PM and determined that the 

methodology used by Omnitrans resulted in a haphazard selection of runs and that the stated sampling 

procedure was followed.   

 

 

k. Select a haphazard sample of the source documents for accumulating PM data and determine that they 

are complete (all required data are recorded) and that the computations are accurate. Select a haphazard 

sample of the accumulation periods and re-compute the accumulations for each of the selected periods.  

List the accumulation periods that were tested.  Test the arithmetical accuracy of the summarization.  

 

Results - For MBDO we haphazardly chose 40 surveyed routes throughout the year. We verified the 

mathematical accuracy of the Trip Report Details and that the data was properly input to the 

accumulation worksheet designed to calculate the average PM with no exceptions. 
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For MBPT we chose all surveyed routes during the test months August 2013, November 2013 and 

March 2014 (totaling 80 routes). We verified the mathematical accuracy of the Trip Report Details and 

that the data was properly input to the accumulation worksheet designed to calculate the average PM 

with no exceptions. 

 

For DRPT we chose all surveyed routes during the test months August 2013, November 2013 and 

March 2014 (totaling 90 routes). We verified the mathematical accuracy of the Trip Report Details and 

that the data was properly input to the accumulation worksheet designed to calculate the average PM 

with no exceptions. 

 

The RBDO mode began service April 28, 2014. We haphazardly chose 9 surveyed routes from the 

period April 28, 2014 through June 30, 2014. We verified the mathematical accuracy of the Trip Report 

Details and that the data was properly input to the accumulation worksheet designed to calculate the 

average PM with no exceptions. 

 

l. Discuss the procedures for systematic exclusion of charter, school bus, and other ineligible vehicle 

miles from the calculation of actual vehicle revenue miles with transit agency staff and determine that 

stated procedures are followed.  Select a haphazard sample of the source documents used to record 

charter and school bus mileage and test the arithmetical accuracy of the computations.  

 

Results - The procedure identified above is not applicable.  Per inquiry with Omnitrans’ management, 

Omnitrans did not provide charter or school bus services. 

 

m. For actual VRM data, document the collection and recording methodology and determine that deadhead 

miles are systematically excluded from the computation.  This is accomplished as follows: 

 

 If actual VRMs are calculated from schedules, document the procedures used to subtract missed 

trips.  Select a haphazard sample of the days that service is operated and re-compute the daily total 

of missed trips and missed vehicle revenue miles.  Test the arithmetical accuracy of the 

summarization.  

 

Results – For the MBDO, MBPT and RBDO modes, Omnitrans tracks actual VRM in real time 

using the Trapeze Intelligent Transportation System from which data is uploaded monthly to the 

TransTrack Manager System. The results are reviewed by management against total scheduled 

VRM and any discrepancies are investigated. The tracking is performed on fixed routes only which 

will not include deadhead miles. We haphazardly selected a sample of five MBDO routes, seven 

MBPT routes and all of the RBDO routes, recalculated the VRMs and compared them to amounts 

used in the total VRM without exception.   

 

 If actual VRMs are calculated from hubodometers, document the procedures used to calculate and 

subtract deadhead mileage.  Select a haphazard sample of the hubodometer readings and determine 

that the stated procedures for hubodometer deadhead mileage adjustments are applied as prescribed.  

Test the arithmetical accuracy of the summarization of intermediate accumulations.  

 

Results - This procedure is not applicable.   
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 If actual VRMs are calculated from vehicle logs, select haphazard samples of the vehicle logs and 

determine that the deadhead mileage has been correctly computed in accordance with FTA’s 

definitions.  

 

Results - For the DRPT mode, Revenue Miles are calculated based on the odometer readings from 

the first pickup to the last drop off.  Deadhead miles are excluded from the Revenue Miles 

calculations.  We selected 90 trips to test and noted without exception that the deadhead miles are 

not included in the Revenue Miles calculations. 

 

 n.  For rail modes, review the recording and accumulation sheets for actual VRM and determine that      

locomotive miles are not included in the computation.  

 

Results - The procedure identified above is not applicable as Omnitrans does not provide rail service.   

 

 

o. If FG DRM are reported, interview the person responsible for maintaining and reporting the NTD data 

whether the operations meet FTA's definition of fixed guideway (FG) in that the service is:   

 

 Rail, trolleybus (TB), ferryboat (FB), or aerial tramway (TR) or  

 Bus (MB) service operating over exclusive or controlled access rights-of-way (ROW), and  

 Access is restricted  

 Legitimate need for restricted access is demonstrated by peak period level of service D or 

worse on parallel adjacent highway, and  

 Restricted access is enforced for freeways; priority lanes used by other high occupancy vehicles 

(HOV) (i.e., vanpools (VP) carpools (CP)) must demonstrate safe operation (see Fixed 

Guideway Segments form (S-20)) 

 High Occupancy/Toll (HO/T) lanes meet FTA requirements for traffic flow of transit vehicles 

and for transit use of toll revenues, and that the transit agency has provided to NTD a copy of 

the State’s certification to the US Secretary of Transportation that it has established a 

program for monitoring, assessing and reporting on the operation of the HOV facility with 

HO/T lanes. 

 

Results – We interviewed the management of Omnitrans and noted that the RBDO service operates over 

exclusive access rights-of way (ROW) that appears consistent with the FTA’s definition of fixed 

guideways. 

 

p.  Discuss the measurement of FG DRM with the person reporting the NTD data and determine that the 

mileage is computed in accordance with FTA’s definitions of FG DRM.  Inquire whether there were 

service changes during the year that resulted in an increase or decrease in DRM.  If a service change 

resulted in a change in overall DRM re-compute the average monthly DRM, and reconcile the total to 

the FG DRM reported on the FFA-10. 

 

Results – Omnitrans added a new FG DRM segment on April 28, 2014.  Per discussion with 

management of Omnitrans, the FG DRM mileage reported for the new segment met the FTA’s 

definitions of the FG DRM.  We recomputed the average monthly FG DRM and reconciled the total to 

the FG DRM reported on the FFA-10 without exception. 

     

 q.   The auditor should inquire if any temporary interruptions in transit service occurred during the report 

year.  If these interruptions were due to maintenance or rehabilitation improvements to a FG segment(s), 

the following apply:  
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 DRMs for the segment(s) should be reported for the entire year if the interruption is less than 12 

months in duration.  The months of operation on the S-20 should be reported as 12.  The transit 

agency should have completed a Form Note describing the interruption.  

 

 If the improvements cause a service interruption on the S-20s DRM lasting more than 12 months, 

the transit agency should contact the validation analyst to discuss.  FTA will make a 

determination on how the DRM should be reported.  

 

Results - There were no temporary interruptions in transit service during the report year. 

 

r. Measure FG DRM from maps or by retracing route.  

 

Results - We recalculated the length of all fixed guideway directional routes for the RBDO mode of 

service using publicly available maps without exception. 

 

s. Discuss with the person reporting the NTD data whether other public transit agencies operate service 

over the same FG as the transit agency.  If yes, determine that the transit agency coordinated with the 

other transit agency(ies) such that the DRM for the segment of FG are reported only once to the NTD 

on the FFA-10.  Each transit agency should report the actual VRM, PM and operating expense (OE) for 

the service operated over the same fixed guideway. 

 

Results - We interviewed the management of Omnitrans and noted that no other public transit agencies 

operate service over the same FG as the transit agency. 

  

t. Review the S-20 form. Discuss the commencement date of revenue service for each FG segment with 

the persons reporting NTD data the Agency Revenue Service Start Date for any segments added in the 

2014 report year. This is the commencement date of revenue service for each FG segment. Determine 

that the date is reported as when the agency began revenue service. This may be later than the Original 

Date of Revenue Service if the transit agency is not the original operator. If a segment was added for 

the 2014 report year, the Agency Revenue Service Date must occur within the transit agency’s 2014 

fiscal year. Segments are summarized by like characteristics. Note that for apportionment purposes 

under the Capital Program for Fixed Guideway Modernization, the 7- year age requirement for fixed 

guideway segments is based on the report year when the segment is first reported by any NTD transit 

agency. This pertains to segments reported for the first time in the current report year. Even if a transit 

agency can document an Agency Revenue Service Start Date prior to the current NTD report year, FTA 

will only consider segments continuously reported to NTD.  

 

Results - Omnitrans added a new FG segment on April 28, 2014 and is in the process of completing the 

application to FTA for adding a new segment.   

 

u. Compare operating expenses with audited financial data, after reconciling items are removed. 

 

Results - Operating expenses were compared to the trial balances subject to audit without exception.   

  

v. If the transit agency purchases transportation services, interview the personnel reporting the NTD data 

regarding the amount of PT generated fare revenues.  The PT fare revenues should equal the amount 

reported on the Contractual Relationship form (B-30)  

 

Results - We identified the fare revenues reported on the B-30 and reconciled the amounts to the 

general ledger without exception.   
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w. If the transit agency's report contains data for PT services and assurances of the data for those services 

is not included, obtain a copy of the Independent Auditor Statement (IAS) or Federal Funding 

Allocation data of the PT service.  Attach a copy of the statement to the report.  Note as an exception if 

the transit agency does not have an IAS for the PT data.  

 

Results – The data for purchased transportation are included in the reporting by Omnitrans and 

therefore no IAS for the purchased transportation services is included.  

 

x. If the transit agency uses PT services, obtain a copy of the PT contract and determine that the contract 

(1) specifies the specific public transportation services to be provided; (2) specifies the monetary 

consideration obligated by the transit agency or governmental unit contracting for the service; (3) 

specifies the period covered by the contract and that this period is the same as, or a portion of, the 

period covered by the transit agency's NTD report; and (4) is signed by representatives of both parties 

to the contract.  Interview the person responsible for maintaining the NTD data regarding the retention 

of the executed contract, and determine that the copies of the contacts are retained for three years.  

 

Results - We inspected the MBPT and DRPT service contracts and determined that they contained the 

items noted above without exception.  We inquired with the Planning and Scheduling Manager and the 

Operations Services Supervisor, regarding Omnitrans’ retention policy for executed contracts for 

purchased transportation programs.  Per inquiry, the current practice is to retain contracts for at least 

three years. 

 

y. If the transit agency provides service in more than one UZA, or between a UZA and a non-UZA, 

inquire of the person responsible for maintaining the NTD data regarding the procedures for allocation 

of statistics between UZAs and non-UZA. Agencies that operate service in both within a UZA and 

outside of a UZA (non-UZA) will report to the 2014 Annual NTD database. Agencies who operate 

service only in a non-UZA should report the 2014 NTD Rural Report. Obtain and review the FG 

segment worksheets, route maps and urbanized area boundaries used for allocating the statistics, and 

determine that the stated procedure is followed and that the computations are correct.  

 

Results - Omnitrans provides services in more than one UZA but does not provide services to non 

urbanized areas.  For the MBDO and MBPT modes allocations to urbanized areas are based on trip 

pattern analysis.  The number of yearly trips per pattern is multiplied by the number of miles 

determined for each UZA. Eight allocations were tested for the MBDO and MBPT services without 

exception.  

 

For the DRPT mode, vehicles are dispatched from two depots, one in each UZA. Ridership is tracked by 

depot and used to calculate the percentages for the UZA split of other data.  

 

z. Compare the data reported on Total Modal Operating Expenses data (F-30, line 15, column e), Actual 

Vehicle Revenue Miles and Passenger Miles Traveled (S-10, lines 12 and 20, column d) to comparable 

data for the prior report year and calculate the percentage change from the prior year to the current year. 

For actual VRM, PMT or OE data that have increased or decreased by more than 10%, or FG DRM 

data that have increased or decreased, interview transit agency management regarding the specifics of 

operations that led to the increases or decreases in the data relative to the prior reporting period. The 

auditor should document the specific procedures followed, documents reviewed, and tests performed in 

the work papers. The work papers should be available for FTA review for a minimum of three years 

following the NTD report year. The auditor may perform additional procedures, which are agreed to by 

the auditor and the transit agency, if desired. The auditor should clearly identify the additional 

procedures performed in a separate attachment to the statement as procedures that were agreed to by the 

transit agency and the auditor, but not by FTA.  

 



ATTACHMENT 1 
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Results – The following fluctuations over 10% were noted on the F-30 and S-10 Forms: 

 

 A 10.3% decrease in Operating Expenses for MBDO 

 A 17.4% increase in Passenger Miles for MBPT  

 A 22.7% increase in Passenger Miles for DRPT 

 

The RBDO service began operations on April 28, 2014 and there is no prior year data for comparison. 

 

The 10.3% decrease in Operating Expenses for MBDO is due to a decrease in Casualty and Liability 

Costs resulting from a change in the IBNR estimation and the allocation of administrative expenses to 

the new RBDO mode. 

 

The 17.4% increase in Passenger Miles for MBPT is due to the results of the APTL Survey which is 

conducted every third year. The fiscal year 2013-14 was a mandatory sampling year and the results 

reflect different ridership patterns than the 2010-11 survey. 

 

The 22.7% increase in Passenger Miles for DRPT is due to the results of the APTL Survey which is 

conducted every third year. The fiscal year 2013-14 was a mandatory sampling year and the results 

reflect different ridership patterns than the 2010-11 survey. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS, 
THE TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT AND  

CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE §8879.50 
 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Omnitrans 
San Bernardino, California 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Omnitrans as of and for the year ended 
June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Omnitrans’ basic 
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 12, 2014.   
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Omnitrans’ internal control over 
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances 
for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of Omnitrans’ internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of Omnitrans’ internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not 
identified.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that 
we consider to be material weaknesses.  We did identify certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, as item 2014-001, that we consider to be a significant 
deficiency. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Omnitrans’ financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements, including Section 6667 of Title 21 of the California Code of Regulations and California 
Government Code §8879.50 et seq., and the allocation instructions of San Bernardino Associated Governments, 
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement 
amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, 
and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards, Section 
6667 of Title 21 of the California Code of Regulations, or the California Government Code §8879.50 et seq. 
 
Omnitrans’ Response to Findings  
 
Omnitrans’ response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of findings 
and questioned costs.  Omnitrans’ response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 
the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 
 
Purpose of this Report  
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on 
compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 

 
 
 
Rancho Cucamonga, California 
December 12, 2014 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM; 
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT ON THE 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS REQUIRED BY  
OMB CIRCULAR A-133 

 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Omnitrans 
San Bernardino, California 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 
 
We have audited Omnitrans’ compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB 
Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Omnitrans’ major 
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2014.  Omnitrans’ major federal programs are identified in the 
summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.   
 
Management’s Responsibility 
 
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants 
applicable to its federal programs. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Omnitrans’ major federal programs based 
on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  We conducted our audit of compliance in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable 
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations.  Those 
standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a 
direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence about Omnitrans’ compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances.   
 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program.  However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Omnitrans’ compliance. 
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
 
In our opinion, Omnitrans complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred 
to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended 
June 30, 2014.   
 
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
 
Management of Omnitrans is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  In planning and performing our audit, 
we considered Omnitrans’ internal control over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and 
material effect on a major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test 
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.  Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of Omnitrans’ internal control over compliance. 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a 
timely basis.  A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material 
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected, on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important 
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not 
been identified.  
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133.  
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
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Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by OMB Circular A-133 
 
We have audited the financial statements of Omnitrans as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related 
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Omnitrans’ basic financial statements.  We issued 
our report thereon dated December 12, 2014, which contained an unmodified opinion on those financial 
statements.  Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming our opinion on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the basic financial statements.  The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required 
part of the basic financial statements.  Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived 
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.  
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and 
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, 
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America.  In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in 
relation to the financial statements as a whole.  

 
 
 
Rancho Cucamonga, California 
December 12, 2014 
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Federal Federal
Domestic Financial Amount

Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor Assistance Grant Assistance Provided to 
Program Title Number Number Expenditure Subrecipients

U.S. Department of Transportation:
Direct Assistance:

Federal Transit - Capital Investment Grants 20.500 CA-03-0624-00 840,812$        840,812$         
Federal Transit - Capital Investment Grants 20.500 CA-03-0660-00 732                 732                  
Federal Transit - Capital Investment Grants 20.500 CA-03-0746-00 18,711            18,711             
Federal Transit - Capital Investment Grants 20.500 CA-03-0816-00 21,695,734     -                       
Federal Transit - Capital Assistance 20.500 CA-04-0035-01 2,360,714       2,360,714        
Federal Transit - Capital Assistance 20.500 CA-04-0071-00 371,564          371,564           
Federal Transit - Capital Assistance 20.500 CA-04-0123-00 414,645          414,645           
Federal Transit - Capital Assistance 20.500 CA-04-0152-00 444,819          444,819           
Federal Transit - Capital Assistance 20.500 CA-04-0191-00 179,178          179,178           
Federal Transit - Capital Assistance 20.500 CA-04-0229-00 1,999,694       1,999,694        
Federal Transit - Formula Grants (Urbanized Area Formula Program) 20.507 CA-90-X929-00 24,141            -                       
Federal Transit - Formula Grants (Urbanized Area Formula Program) - ARRA 20.507 CA-96-X058-00 34,388            34,388             
Federal Transit - Formula Grants (Urbanized Area Formula Program) 20.507 CA-95-X124-00 1,540,146       -                       
Federal Transit - Formula Grants (Urbanized Area Formula Program) 20.507 CA-90-Y064-00 181,679          180,632           
Federal Transit - Formula Grants (Urbanized Area Formula Program) 20.507 CA-90-Y098-00 1,166,819       -                       
Federal Transit - Formula Grants (Urbanized Area Formula Program) 20.507 CA-90-Y164-00 3,368,967       1,548,869        
Federal Transit - Formula Grants (Urbanized Area Formula Program) 20.507 CA-90-Y251-00 30,054            -                       
Federal Transit - Formula Grants (Urbanized Area Formula Program) 20.507 CA-90-Y333-00 236,060          -                       
Federal Transit - Formula Grants (Urbanized Area Formula Program) 20.507 CA-90-Y396-00 326,499          -                       
Federal Transit - Formula Grants (Urbanized Area Formula Program) 20.507 CA-90-Y495-00 149,157          -                       
Federal Transit - Formula Grants (Urbanized Area Formula Program) 20.507 CA-90-Y602-00 576,588          -                       
Federal Transit - Formula Grants (Urbanized Area Formula Program) 20.507 CA-90-Y672-00 449,937          449,937           
Federal Transit - Formula Grants (Urbanized Area Formula Program) 20.507 CA-90-Y681-00 3,329,127       3,740               
Federal Transit - Formula Grants (Urbanized Area Formula Program) 20.507 CA-90-Y775-00 8,929,272       -                       
Federal Transit - Formula Grants (Urbanized Area Formula Program) 20.507 CA-90-Y850-00 4,450,738       1,277               
Federal Transit - Formula Grants (Urbanized Area Formula Program) 20.507 CA-90-Y939-00 1,003,052       3,441               
Federal Transit - Formula Grants (Urbanized Area Formula Program) 20.507 CA-90-Z009-00 829,190          -                       
Federal Transit - Formula Grants (Urbanized Area Formula Program) 20.507 CA-90-Z12-00 3,649,020       -                       
    Subtotal - Federal Transit Cluster 58,601,437     8,853,153        

Job Access and Reverse Commute Program - FY06-08 Section 5316 Capital 20.516 CA-37-X090-00 303,021          279,209           
Job Access and Reverse Commute Program - FY09-10 Section 5316 Capital 20.516 CA-37-X146-00 288,373          65,380             
New Freedom Program FY06-08 - 5317 (Amend) 20.521 CA-57-X017-00 221,604          197,784           
New Freedom Program FY09-10 - 5317 20.521 CA-57-X062-00 89,415            89,415             
    Subtotal - Transit Services Programs Cluster 902,413          631,788           

Holt Boulevard Alternative Analysis 20.522 CA-39-0008-00 189,517          -                       
Total - U.S. Department of Transportation 59,693,367     9,484,941        

U.S. Department of Homeland Security:
Direct Assistance:

FEMA-Dept of Homeland Security 97.075 N/A 7,500              -                       

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 59,700,867$   9,484,941$      
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NOTE #1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  
 
(A) Scope of Presentation 

 
The accompanying schedule presents only the expenditures incurred by Omnitrans that are reimbursable 
under federal programs of federal financial assistance.  For the purposes of this schedule, federal financial 
assistance includes both federal financial assistance received directly from a federal agency, as well as 
federal funds received indirectly by Omnitrans from a non-federal agency or other organization.  Only the 
portion of program expenditures reimbursable with such federal funds is reported in the accompanying 
schedule.  Program expenditures in excess of the maximum federal reimbursement authorized or the portion 
of the program expenditures that were funded with state, local or other non-federal funds are excluded from 
the accompanying schedule.  
 

(B) Basis of Accounting 
 
The expenditures included in the accompanying schedule were reported on the accrual basis of accounting.  
Under the accrual basis of accounting, expenditures are recognized when Omnitrans becomes obligated for 
payment as a result of the receipt of the related goods and services.  Expenditures reported included any 
property or equipment acquisitions incurred under the federal program. 
 

(C) Subrecipients 
 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, Omnitrans provided $9,484,941 in federal awards to 
subrecipients from funding provided by the U.S. Department of Transportation.  
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Type of auditors' report issued: Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified? No
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? Yes

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? No

FEDERAL AWARDS
Internal control over major federal programs:

Material weakness(es) identified? No
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? None Reported

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major federal programs: Unmodified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance with
 Circular A-133, Section .510(a) No

Identification of major federal programs:

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster
20.500, 20.507 Federal Transit Cluster (includes ARRA)

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: 1,791,026$       
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? No
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Finding 2014-001 
 
FINANCIAL REPORTING 
 
Criteria: 
 
Per the Transportation Development Act (TDA) section 6634, no operator or transit service claimant shall be 
eligible to receive moneys during the fiscal year from the local transportation fund (LTF) and the state transit 
assistance fund (STAF) for operating costs in an amount that exceeds its actual operating cost. 
 
Condition: 
 
Omnitrans prepares a claim for submission to SANBAG identifying its revenues and expenses for operating and 
capital sources.  The claim form is subsequently updated at year-end using final closing balances.  It was noted 
that Omnitrans had identified that it received TDA funding that exceed actual costs by approximately $5.7 
million; the excess had not been adjusted to unearned revenue for the financial statements. 
 
Context: 
 
The amount of LTF/STAF operating revenues exceeding actual operating costs should have been unearned 
revenue as of year-end. 
 
Effect: 
 
An adjustment to reduce current year revenue was proposed and posted by Omnitrans. 
 
Cause: 
 
Omnitrans did not maintain procedures to monitor compliance with TDA section 6634 requirements and the 
resulting year-end transactions. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Omnitrans should develop and implement policies and procedures designed to monitor compliance with TDA 
section 6634 and record any resulting year-end transactions. 
 
View of Responsible Official and Planned Corrective Actions: 
 
Omnitrans experienced a significant reduction in operational expenses resulting from the re-evaluation of 
workers’ compensation claims by a new Third Party Administrator.  This reduction in expenses was discussed 
with San Bernardino Associated Governments (SANBAG), the transportation planning agency for 
San Bernardino County.   
 
Omnitrans fiscal year-end procedures include submitting the San Bernardino County Transportation 
Commission’s Transit System Claim after the timely completion and finalization of the financial audit.  The 
Transit System Claim shows the “Surplus or (Deficit)” for the fiscal year.  As policy, any surplus or deficit in 
funding will be adjusted by SANBAG in the following fiscal year’s LTF funding allocation.  In the future when 
operating surplus is significant, Omnitrans will continue to inform SANBAG and record the surplus as “Unearned 
Revenue.”  
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None reported. 
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Summarized below is the current status of all audit findings reported in the prior year audit’s schedule of audit 
findings and questioned costs. 
 
Financial Statement Findings 
 

Finding No. Area

2013-001 Financial Reporting

Status of Corrective Action

Implemented

 
 
Federal Awards Findings 
 

Finding No. Program CFDA No. Compliance 
Requirement

Status of Corrective Action

2013-002 Federal Transit Cluster 20.500 and 
20.507

Subrecipient 
Monitoring

Implemented

2013-003 Federal Transit Cluster 20.500 and 
20.507

Reporting Implemented
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON PROPOSITION 1B SCHEDULE OF 
UNSPENT FUNDS AND CASH DISBURSEMENTS 

 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Omnitrans 
San Bernardino, California 
 
We have audited the financial statements of Omnitrans as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related 
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Omnitrans’ basic financial statements and have 
issued our report thereon dated December 12, 2014, which contained an unmodified opinion on those financial 
statements.  Those financial statements are the responsibility of Omnitrans' management.  Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit.  
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise Omnitrans' basic financial statements.  The accompanying Proposition 1B Schedule of Unspent Funds 
and Cash Disbursements is presented for purposes of additional analysis, to satisfy the requirements of  
Section 6667 of Title 21 of the California Code of Regulations, the California Government Code §8879.50, and 
the California State Senate Bill 88 (2007), et seq. and is not a required part of the financial statements.  Such 
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.  The information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United Stated of America.  In our opinion, the 
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

 
 
 
Rancho Cucamonga, California 
December 12, 2014 
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PTMISEA (1) CTSG (2) Total

Unspent Prop 1B funds as of June 30, 2013 1,064,688$      1,409,238$      2,473,926$      

Prop 1B funds received during the year ended June 30, 2014 29,123,094      257,132           29,380,226      

Interest revenue earned on unspent Prop 1B funds during fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2014 1,098               259                  1,357               

Change in fair market value of investments during the year ended
   June 30, 2014 (42,820)            -                       (42,820)            

Prop 1B disbursements during the year ended June 30, 2014 (393,761)          (1,051,365)       (1,445,126)       

Unspent Prop 1B funds as of June 30, 2014 29,752,299$    615,264$         30,367,563$       

(1) Public Transportation, Modernization, Improvement, and Service Enhancement Account

(2) California Transit Security Grant, including CalEMA program from prior year
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Many positive changes have occurred at Omnitrans during the fiscal year that could not have happened 
without the participation of every Omnitrans employee. Most notable, of course, was the launching of 
our sbX.  The news media was very favorable; calling our goal to achieve enhanced mobility “a very 
smart move.” The Federal Transportation Administration hailed the project as a “complete success.”   
 
Our next stop is the completion of the San Bernardino Transit Center which is scheduled for operation 
in mid-2015. This facility will not only be a transfer point for our transit buses, but it will couple 
Metrolink and Omnitrans at one location.  So hold on for more changes as we look to introduce bus 
rapid transit into our western service area, and further Omnitrans’ reputation as a transit agency in 
motion – not stagnate! 
 
P. Scott Graham 
CEO/General Manager 
 

 

 

 

 



 
OMNITRANS 

San Bernardino, California 
 
 
 

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 

(With Independent Auditor’s Report Thereon) 
 
 
 
 

 
Connecting Our Community 

 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by the Finance Department 
 

DONALD WALKER 
Director of Finance 



 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
INTRODUCTORY SECTION 
 
Letter of Transmittal              i 
Organizational Chart           iii 
List of Elected and Appointed Officials         iv 
GFOA Certificate of Achievement        viii 
General Information            ix 
 
 
FINANCIAL SECTION 
 
Independent Auditors’ Report            1 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (required supplementary information)      

Financial Highlights            3 
Overview of the Financial Statements         4 
Net Position             9 
Changes in Net Position           9 

Basic Financial Statements           
Statement of Net Position          13 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position    14 
Statement of Cash Flows         15 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements        17 

Required Supplementary Information 
Schedule of Funding Progress –  
  Public Employees Retirement System (PERS)      33 

 
STATISTICAL SECTION 
 
Financial Trends            

Net Position by Component         35 
Changes in Net Position          36 

Revenue Capacity            
Revenue by Source          37 

Demographics and Economics Information       
Demographics and Statistics of San Bernardino County    38 
Principal Employers of San Bernardino County       39 
Industry Employment and Labor Force        40 
Economy and Economic Outlook        43 

Operating Information          
Number of Employees          44 
Operating Expenses by Category        45 
Operating Expenses by Function         46 
Capital Assets by Function         47 



 

      
 

 
 

   
 



San Bernardino Transit Center 
(Completion mid 2015) 
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2014 2013 
ASSETS: 

CURRENT ASSETS: 
Cash and investments (Note 2)  $        54,606,906   $        18,413,935  
Receivables: 

Accounts, net of allowances 263,240  100,338  
Interest 13,944  7,259  
Intergovernmental 18,445,255  27,264,468  

Inventory 1,787,199  1,593,461  
Prepaid items 414,611  303,414  
Derivative Instrument - natural gas futures - 55,513  

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 75,531,155  47,738,388  

NONCURRENT ASSETS: 
Capital assets, not depreciated (Note 5) 172,495,981  136,974,065  
Capital assets, depreciated (Note 5) 73,084,669  70,018,233  

TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS 245,580,650  206,992,298  
TOTAL ASSETS 321,111,805  254,730,686  

LIABILITIES: 
CURRENT LIABILITIES: 

Accounts payable 14,657,136  17,591,611  
Accrued salaries and benefits 2,102,918  1,751,176  
Retainage payable 38,968  67,275  
Interest payable 634  1,498  
Unearned revenue 36,306,233  2,873,278  
Compensated absences payable -  

current portion (Note 4) 2,387,968  2,460,101  
Capital leases payable - current portion (Note 4) 139,168  157,122  
Claims payable - current portion (Note 4) 3,158,775  3,775,550  

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 58,791,800  28,677,611  

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES: 
Compensated absences payable (Note 4) 1,165,088  1,279,715  
Capital leases payable (Note 4) 129,101  268,269  
Claims payable (Note 4) 6,334,257  9,334,915  

TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 7,628,446  10,882,899  
TOTAL LIABILITIES 66,420,246  39,560,510  

DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES: 
Accumulated increase in fair value of hedging derivatives - 55,513  

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES - 55,513  

NET POSITION: 
Net investment in capital assets (Note 11) 245,312,381  206,566,907  
Unrestricted (Note 11) 9,379,178  8,547,756  

TOTAL NET POSITION  $      254,691,559   $     215,114,663  
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2014 2013
OPERATING REVENUES:

Passenger fares 14,368,317$          14,317,987$        
Advertising revenue 485,327 481,994               
Other transportation revenue 41,978 39,819                 

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 14,895,622            14,839,800          

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Salaries and benefits 39,097,952 38,719,591          
Purchased transportation services 9,075,431 9,084,344            
General and administrative 4,365,255 9,341,532            
Materials and supplies 9,144,483 8,905,445            
Capital purchases 758,859 787,439               
Professional and technical services 2,312,152 2,400,460            
Advertising and printing 881,217 884,837               
Depreciation 14,899,383 16,678,098          
Miscellaneous 203,936 415,430               

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 80,738,668            87,217,176          

OPERATING INCOME/(LOSS) (65,843,046)           (72,377,376)        

NONOPERATING REVENUES/(EXPENSES):
Federal and local operating grants 50,785,745 54,087,458          
Interest income 44,311 24,915                 
Interest expense (4,580)                    (8,349)                 
Pass-through to other agencies (Note 10) (4,459,471)             (2,254,293)          
Loss on disposal of capital assets (969,126)                (80,713)               
CNG fuel credit 1,071,808 1,477,256            
Other nonoperating revenues 15,505                   13,304                 

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES 46,484,192            53,259,578          

INCOME/(LOSS) BEFORE CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS (19,358,854)           (19,117,798)        

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS:
Capital assistance 58,935,750 89,571,554          

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 39,576,896            70,453,756          

NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR 215,114,663          144,660,907        

NET POSITION, END OF YEAR 254,691,559$        215,114,663$      
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2014 2013
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Cash received from customers 14,732,720$          14,905,604$         
Nonoperating miscellaneous receipts (payments) 1,087,313              1,490,560             
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (29,011,617)           (24,785,556)          
Cash payments to employees for services (42,550,403)           (36,297,254)          

Net cash used for operating activities (55,741,987)           (44,686,646)          

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Federal, state, and local operating grants 56,538,655            54,087,458           
Pass-through payments to other agencies (4,459,471)             (2,254,293)            

Net cash provided by non-capital
 financing activities 52,079,184            51,833,165           

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Acquisition and construction of capital assets (55,454,294)           (87,078,535)          
Principal paid on capital leases (157,122)                (164,980)               
Interest paid on capital leases (5,444)                    (8,006)                   
Proceeds from sale of capital assets -                             -                            
Capital grants received 95,435,008            70,812,057           

Net cash provided by (used for) capital and related 
 financing activities 39,818,148            (16,439,464)          

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 44,200,000            58,250,000           
Purchase of investments (75,933,688)           (45,235,741)          
Interest received 37,626                   35,741                  

Net cash provided by/(used for) investing activities (31,696,062)           13,050,000           

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 4,459,283              3,757,055             

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 9,734,605              5,977,550             

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR 14,193,888$          9,734,605$           

RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS TO
AMOUNTS REPORTED ON STATEMENT OF NET POSITION:

Reported on statement of net position:
Cash and investments 54,606,906$          18,413,935$         

Less investments not meeting the definition of cash and
  cash equivalents (40,413,018)           (8,679,330)            

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR 14,193,888$          9,734,605$           
(Continued)  
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2014 2013

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating income (loss) (65,843,046)$         (72,377,376)$        
Adjustments to net cash used by operating activities:

Depreciation 14,899,383            16,678,098           
Nonoperating miscellaneous income 1,087,313              1,490,560             
Realized (gain) loss on sale of capital assets 969,126                 80,713                  
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (162,902)                65,804                  
(Increase) decrease in inventory (193,738)                (43,711)                 
(Increase) decrease in prepaid items (111,197)                (49,895)                 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (2,934,475)             7,046,824             
Increase (decrease) in accrued salaries and benefits 351,742                 109,639                
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences payable (186,760)                (71,768)                 
Increase (decrease) in claims payable (3,617,433)             2,384,466             

NET CASH USED FOR OPERATING ACTIVITIES (55,741,987)$         (44,686,646)$        
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Nature of Business 
 
Omnitrans was organized on March 8, 1976, by a joint powers agreement between the County of San Bernardino, 
California and the following cities:  Chino; Colton; Fontana; Loma Linda; Montclair; Ontario; Redlands; Rialto; 
San Bernardino; and Upland under Section 6506 of the California Government Code for the purpose of providing 
transit services under a single agency.  The following cities were added thereafter:  Rancho Cucamonga and 
Grand Terrace in 1979; Highland in 1988; Yucaipa in 1990; and Chino Hills in 1992. 
 
Omnitrans provides a variety of transit services to the public of San Bernardino County.  These services include 
bus operations, purchased transportation services with independent contractors and demand response 
transportation services.  Omnitrans also functions as a “pass-through” administrative agency for various federal, 
state and local grants.  
 
Basis of Accounting 
 
Omnitrans is accounted for as an enterprise fund (proprietary fund type).  Proprietary fund financial statements 
are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are 
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred. 
 
Classification of Revenues and Expenses 
 
Enterprise funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.  Operating revenues and 
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with an 
enterprise fund’s principal operations.  The principal operating revenues of Omnitrans consist of bus transit 
services.  Non-operating revenues consist of federal, state and local operating grants, and investment income.  
Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales, administrative expenses and depreciation on 
capital assets. 
 
Expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating expenses.  Non-operating expenses primarily 
consist of payments to pass-through agencies and interest expense.   
 
Capital contributions consist of grants that are legally restricted for capital expenses by federal, state or local law 
that established those charges. 
 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is Omnitrans' policy to use restricted 
resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed.  
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash equivalents are defined as short-term, highly liquid 
investments that are both readily convertible to known amounts of cash or so near their maturity that they present 
insignificant risk of changes in value because of changes in interest rates, and have an original maturity date of 
three months or less. 
 
Investments 
 
Investments are reported in the accompanying Statement of Net Position at fair value.  Changes in fair value that 
occur during the fiscal year are recognized as investment income reported for that fiscal year.  Investment income 
includes interest earnings, changes in fair value, and any gains or losses realized upon the liquidation or sale of 
investments. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 
 
Omnitrans provides an allowance for doubtful accounts for all accounts deemed uncollectible.  As of 
June 30, 2014, all accounts were deemed collectible resulting in an allowance for doubtful accounts of $0. 
 
Inventories 
 
Inventories consist of Operations vehicles’ parts and fuel in storage held for consumption.  The parts and fuel in 
storage are stated at the lower of cost (average cost method) or market.  The value of parts and fuel held in storage 
as of June 30, 2014 was $1,787,199. 
 
Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets are valued at cost or estimated historical cost if actual cost is not available.  Donated assets are 
valued at their estimated fair market value on the date donated.  Omnitrans capitalizes all assets with a historical 
cost of at least $2,000 and a useful life of at least one year.  The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do 
not add to the value of the assets or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. 
 
Depreciation of capital assets used by Omnitrans is charged as an expense against its operations.  Depreciation is 
computed utilizing the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: 
 

Number of
Category Years

Buildings and improvements 5 to 30
Operations equipment 3 to 10
Furniture and office equipment 3 to 20

 
Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
 
In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows 
of resources.  This separate financial statement element represents a consumption of net position that applies to a 
future period and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense) until then.  Omnitrans does not 
have any items that qualify for reporting in this category. 
 
In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
inflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element represents an acquisition of net position that 
applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.  The 
government has one item that qualifies for reporting in this category.  Omnitrans reports the value of their 
derivative instrument, natural gas futures used for hedging purposes, as an inflow of resources in the period that 
the amounts become available. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
Compensated Absences 
 
It is Omnitrans’ policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick leave benefits up 
to certain limits.  Management, non-exempt, and coach operator employees begin to accrue vested sick leave 
hours after six months of service.  Upon voluntary resignation, retirement or death and after six months of service, 
management and non-exempt employees or their estate are paid for any unused sick leave up to a maximum of 50 
percent of the available sick leave hours not to exceed 1,200 hours (e.g. 50 percent of 1,200 hours would be paid 
at 600 hours).  Represented employees begin to accrue vested sick leave hours after reaching a certain amount of 
service time based upon their respective work classification.  Teamsters accrue sick leave after 1,040 hours of 
actual hours worked and Amalgamated Transit Union (ATU) members are after their first year of continuous full-
time employment, based upon their respective work classification.  Upon voluntary resignation, retirement, or 
death, and after a certain amount of years of service (ATU members after 8 years of service and Teamsters after 
10 years of service), represented employees or their estate are paid for any unused sick leave up to a maximum of 
50 percent of available sick leave hours not to exceed 1,200 hours (e.g. 50 percent of 1,200 hours would be paid at 
600 hours).   
 
Full-time non-represented employees begin to accrue vacation hours after 6 months of service.  Employee 
vacation credits may be accrued and accumulated up to a maximum of 2 years total accumulated vacation credits.  
Eligible employees with an annual accrual of 3 or more weeks of vacation per year, after taking 80 hours 
vacation, shall be permitted to request 2 weeks pay in lieu of time off.  Represented employees will accrue 
vacation benefits in accordance with the provisions of their respective Memorandum of Understanding (MOU).   

 
Accumulated unpaid vacation and vested sick leave pay is recorded as an expense and a liability at the time the 
benefit is earned.  Total compensated absences payable was $3,553,056 at June 30, 2014. 
 
Prior Year Data 
 
Selected information regarding the prior year has been included in the accompanying financial statements.  This 
information has been included for comparison purposes only and does not represent a complete presentation in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.  Accordingly, such information should be read in 
conjunction with Omnitrans’ prior year financial statements, from which this selected financial data was derived. 
 
Federal, State and Local Grants 
 
Federal, state and local governments have made various grants available to Omnitrans for operating assistance and 
acquisition of capital assets.  Grants for operating assistance, the acquisition of equipment or other capital outlay 
are not formally recognized in the accounts until the grant becomes a valid receivable as a result of Omnitrans 
complying with appropriate grant requirements.  Operating assistance grants are included in non-operating 
revenues in the year in which the grant is applicable and the related expenses are incurred.  Revenues earned 
under capital grants are recorded as capital contributions.   
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
Pass-Through Activities 
 
Revenues associated with grants, where Omnitrans serves as the administrating agent, are recorded as either non-
operating revenues or capital contributions based on the approved use of the grant.  The related expense is 
recorded as “pass-through to other agencies” in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net 
Position as the expenses do not support the operations of Omnitrans nor provide an asset.   
 
Net Position 
 
Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets reduced by accumulated depreciation and by any 
outstanding debt incurred to acquire, construct, or improve those assets. 
 
Unrestricted net position is the net amount of the assets and liabilities that are not included in the determination of 
net position component listed above. 
 
Use of Estimates/Reclassifications 
 
The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could 
differ from those estimates.  Certain amounts in the prior year have been reclassified to conform to the current 
year presentation. 
 
New Accounting Pronouncements 
 
Effective in this Fiscal Year 
 
GASB Statement No. 67 – In June 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans 
– an amendment of GASB Statement No. 25.  The objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting by 
state and local governmental pension plans.  This Statement results from a comprehensive review of the 
effectiveness of existing standards of accounting and financial reporting for pensions with regard to providing 
decision-useful information, supporting assessments of accountability and interperiod equity, and creating 
additional transparency.  This Statement replaces the requirements of Statement No. 25, Financial Reporting for 
Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Note Disclosures for Defined Contribution Plans, and Statement No. 50, 
Pension Disclosures, as they relate to pension plans that are not administered through trust covered by the scope 
of this Statement and to defined contribution plans that provide postemployment benefits other than pension.  The 
Statement is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2013.  This Statement is specifically for pension plan 
providers and had no material effect on the financial statements. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
New Accounting Pronouncements (Continued) 
 
Effective in Future Fiscal Years 
 
GASB Statement No. 68 – In June 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Pensions—an Amendment of GASB Statement No. 27.  This Statement establishes standards for measuring and 
recognizing liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and expense/expenditures.  
For defined benefit pensions, this Statement identifies the methods and assumptions that should be used to project 
benefit payments, discount projected benefit payments to their actuarial present value, and attribute that present 
value to periods of employee service.  This Statement is effective as of July 1, 2014.  Omnitrans has not 
determined the effect on the financial statements. 
 
GASB Statement No. 69 – In January 2013, GASB issued Statement No. 69, Government Combinations and 
Deposals of Government Operations.  This Statement establishes accounting and financial reporting standards 
related to government combinations and disposals of government operations.  As used in this Statement, the term 
government combinations includes a variety of transactions referred to as mergers, acquisitions, and transfers of 
operations.  This Statement is effective as of July 1, 2014.  Omnitrans has not determined the effect on the 
financial statements. 
 
GASB Statement No. 71 – In November 2013, GASB issued Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for 
Contributions made Subsequent to the Measurement Date – an Amendment of GASB No. 68.  The objective of this 
Statement is to address an issue regarding application of the transition provisions of Statement No. 68, Accounting 
and Financial Reporting for Pensions.  The issue relates to amounts associated with contributions, if any, made 
by a state or local government employer or nonemployer contributing entity to a defined benefit pension plan after 
the measurement date of the government’s beginning net pension liability.  This Statement is effective as of 
July 1, 2014.  Omnitrans has not determined the effect on the financial statements. 
 
 
NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
 
Cash and investments as of June 30, 2014 consist of the following: 
 
Cash on hand 3,700$                 
Deposits with financial institutions 14,190,188          
Investments 40,413,018          

54,606,906$        
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NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
Investments Authorized by the California Government Code or Omnitrans’ Investment Policy 
 
The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized by the California Government Code (or 
Omnitrans’ investment policy, where more restrictive).  The table also identifies certain provisions of the 
California Government Code (or Omnitrans’ investment policy, where more restrictive) that address interest rate 
risk, and concentration of credit risk.   
 

Maximum Maximum
Authorized Maximum Percentage Investment

Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio in One Issuer
Local Agency Bonds 5 years None None
U.S. Treasury Obligations 5 years None None
Federal Agency Securities 5 years None None
Banker's Acceptances 180 days 40% 30%
Commercial Paper 270 days 25% 10%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 years 30% None
Repurchase Agreements 1 year 20% None
Medium - Term Notes 5 years 30% None
Local Agency Investment Fund N/A None None
California Asset Management Program (CAMP) N/A None None
California Local Agency Securities System (CLASS) N/A None None

 
Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk 
 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment.  Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment the greater the sensitivity of its fair market value 
to changes in market interest rates.  The investment policy of Omnitrans provides safety and liquidity guidelines 
for managing interest rate risk.  
 
Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of Omnitrans’ investments to market interest rate fluctuations 
is provided by the following table that shows the distribution of Omnitrans’ investments by maturity: 
 

12 Months 1 to 3 3 to 5 Fair
Investment Type Or Less Years Years Value

Local Agency Investment Fund  $  23,566,956                       -                       -  $  23,566,956 
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit           997,810  $    1,989,290  $       248,168        3,235,268 
U.S. Government Sponsored
  Enterprise Securities:

FFCB        5,593,207        5,593,207 
FHLB        2,963,844        3,083,202        6,047,046 
FNMA        1,970,541        1,970,541 

Total Cash Investments  $  27,528,610  $  10,665,699  $    2,218,709  $  40,413,018 

Remaining Investment Maturities
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NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk 
 
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the 
investment.  This is measured by the assignment of a nationally recognized statistical rating organization.  The 
table below represents the minimum rating required by the California Government Code (where applicable), or 
Omnitrans’ investment policy, and the actual rating as of year-end for each investment type. 
 

Total Minimum
as of Legal

Investment Type June 30, 2014 Rating AA+ Unrated
Local Agency Investment Fund  $  23,566,956 (1)  $                   -  $  23,566,956 
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit        3,235,268 (1)        3,235,268 
U.S. Government Sponsored

Enterprise Securities:
FFCB        5,593,207 (1)  $    5,593,207                       - 
FHLB        6,047,046 (1)        6,047,046                       - 
FNMA        1,970,541 (1)        1,970,541                       - 

Total  $  40,413,018  $  13,610,794  $  26,802,224 

(1) Not Applicable  
Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of Omnitrans’ investment in a single 
issue.  The investment policy of Omnitrans contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any one 
issuer beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code.  As of June 30, 2014, the following investments 
represented 5% or more of Omnitrans’ total investments. 
 

Total Percentage
as of of Total

Issuer June 30, 2014 Investments

FFCB  $     5,593,207 14%
FHLB         6,047,046 15%
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NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
Custodial Credit Risk 
 
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, 
Omnitrans will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the 
possession of an outside party.  The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure 
of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its 
investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party.  The California Government Code 
and Omnitrans’ investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to 
custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, other than the following provision for deposits.  The California 
Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or local government units by 
pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so 
waived by the governmental unit).  The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at 
least 110% of the total amount deposited by the public agencies.  California law also allows financial institutions 
to secure Omnitrans’ deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured 
public deposits.  As of June 30, 2014, Omnitrans had deposits of $16,553,681 held in excess of federal depository 
insurance corporation (FDIC) limits. 

 
Investment in LAIF 
 
Omnitrans is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), which is regulated by 
California Government Code Section 16429.1 through 16429.4 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of 
California.  LAIF is a governmental investment pool managed and directed by the California State Treasurer and 
is not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission.  An oversight committee comprised of California 
State officials and various participants provide oversight to the management of the fund.  The daily operations and 
responsibilities of LAIF fall under the auspices of the State Treasurer's office.  The fair value of Omnitrans’ 
investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at amounts based upon Omnitrans’ 
pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of 
that portfolio).  The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, 
which are recorded on an amortized cost basis.   
 
 
NOTE 3 – FEDERAL STATE AND LOCAL GRANTS 
 
Omnitrans receives operating and capital assistance from various federal, state and local sources. 
 
Federal Assistance 
 
Under the provision of the Federal Transit Administration (FTA), funds are available to Omnitrans for preventive 
maintenance, security, and various capital costs.   
 
Transportation Development Act Assistance 

 
Pursuant to provisions of the 1971 Transportation Development Act (TDA), as amended, the California State 
Legislature enacted the Local Transportation Fund (LTF) and the State Transit Assistance Fund (STAF) to 
provide operating and capital assistance for public transportation.  These funds are received from the County of 
San Bernardino based on annual claims filed by Omnitrans and approved by the San Bernardino Associated 
Governments (SANBAG), the regional transportation planning entity.  
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NOTE 3 – FEDERAL STATE AND LOCAL GRANTS (CONTINUED) 
 
To be eligible for TDA funds, Omnitrans must maintain a ratio of passenger fares to operating costs of not less 
than 20.00% for general public transit service and 10.00% for specialized service for the elderly and handicapped.  
After considering certain cost exemption provisions of the TDA, Omnitrans’ ratios for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2014 were 25.27% for general public transit service, and 12.70% for specialized service for the elderly 
and handicapped.   
 
In accordance with 6634 of the TDA, an operator may not receive TDA funds in an amount that exceeds its actual 
operating costs.  Accordingly, Omnitrans has recorded unearned revenue in the amount of $5,752,910 as of 
June 30, 2014. 
 
Measure I 
 
Omnitrans receives Measure I funds for paratransit operating costs.  Measure I funds are derived from a locally 
imposed 0.5% retail sales and use tax on all taxable sales within the County of San Bernardino.  The allocation 
and administration of Measure I is performed by SANBAG.   
 
Proposition 1B 
 
The Public Transportation Modernization, Improvement and Service Enhancement Account (PTMISEA) Fund is 
a part of the State of California’s Highway Safety, Traffic Reduction, Air Quality, and Port Security Bond Act of 
2006 (Bond Act), approved by California voters as Proposition 1B on November 7, 2006.  A total of $19.9 billion 
was deposited into the PTMISEA fund, $3.6 billion of which was made available to project sponsors in California 
for allocation to eligible public transportation projects over a 10-year period.  Proposition 1B funds can be used 
for rehabilitation, safety or modernization improvements, capital service enhancements or expansions, new capital 
projects, bus rapid transit improvements, or for rolling stock procurement, rehabilitation or replacement.  During 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, Proposition 1B cash receipts and cash disbursements were as follows:   

 
Unspent Proposition 1B funds as of June 30, 2013 2,473,926$        
Proposition 1B funds received during the fiscal year
   ended June 30, 2014 29,380,226        
Proposition 1B expenses incurred during the fiscal year
   ended June 30, 2014 (1,445,126)         
Interest revenue earned on unspent Proposition 1B
   funds during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 1,357                 
Change in fair market value of investments held during
   the year ended June 30, 2014 (42,820)              

30,367,563$      

 
The amount of unspent Proposition 1B funds noted above is included in unearned revenue on the Statement of 
Net Position as of June 30, 2014. 
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NOTE 3 – FEDERAL STATE AND LOCAL GRANTS (CONTINUED) 
 
Operating assistance is summarized as follows for the year ended June 30: 
 

Federal Assistance 11,018,990$      
LTF 30,602,773        
STAF 4,063,982          
Measure I 5,100,000          

50,785,745$      

 
Capital contributions for the year ended June 30 were as follows: 
 

Federal Assistance 48,681,878$      
LTF 3,792,243          
STAF 3,138,644          
Measure I 646,194             
CalTrans 1,083,643          
Other 1,593,148          

58,935,750$      

 
 

NOTE 4 – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
 
Long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2014 are as follows: 
 

Balance at Balance at Due Within Amount Due
June 30, 2013 Additions Deletions June 30, 2014 One Year Beyond One Year

Compensated absences 3,739,816$    1,722,674$    (1,909,434)$   3,553,056$    2,387,968$    1,165,088$            
Capital leases 425,391         -                     (157,122)        268,269         139,168         129,101                 
Claims payable 13,110,465    (3,486,199)     (131,234)        9,493,032      3,158,775      6,334,257              

Total Long-Term Liabilities 17,275,672$  (1,763,525)$   (2,197,790)$   13,314,357$  5,685,911$    7,628,446$            

 
Capital Lease Obligations 
 
In December 2011 Omnitrans entered into a lease financing arrangement for 29 vehicles with Enterprise Fleet 
Services.  The minimum lease payments required during the current five-year term of these agreements are 
$665,411.  The lease payments have a present value of $652,369, which approximates the value of the assets, and 
is the amount capitalized in Omnitrans’ capital assets.  The outstanding principal balance was $268,269 as of 
June 30, 2014. 
 
The future minimum lease obligations as of June 30, 2014 were as follows: 

 
Year Ending

June 30, Principal Interest Total
2015 139,166$       2,757$           141,923$       
2016 129,103         1,392             130,495         
Total 268,269$       4,149$           272,418$       
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NOTE 5 – CAPITAL ASSETS 
 

Balance at Balance at
June 30, 2013 Additions Retirements June 30, 2014

CAPITAL ASSETS, NOT DEPRECIATED:
Land 10,731,918$     -$                   (209,209)$       10,522,709$   
Construction in progress 126,242,147     53,812,825$  (18,081,700)    161,973,272   

Total assets, not depreciated 136,974,065     53,812,825    (18,290,909)    172,495,981   

CAPITAL ASSETS, DEPRECIATED:
Buildings and improvements 45,837,257       167,816         (1,676,142)      44,328,931     
Operations equipment 89,513,752       18,003,804    (265,713)         107,251,843   
Furniture and office equipment 35,126,701       556,444         (113,998)         35,569,147     

Total capital assets, depreciated 170,477,710     18,728,064    (2,055,853)      187,149,921   

LESS ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATED FOR:
Buildings and improvements (24,496,835)     (1,818,842)     1,091,767       (25,223,910)    
Operations equipment (49,232,380)     (6,265,296)     87,843            (55,409,833)    
Furniture and office equipment (26,730,262)     (6,815,245)     113,998          (33,431,509)    

Total accumulated depreciation (100,459,477)   (14,899,383)   1,293,608       (114,065,252)  
Total capital assets, depreciation, net 70,018,233       3,828,681      (762,245)         73,084,669     
Capital assets, net 206,992,298$   57,641,506$  (19,053,154)$  245,580,650$ 

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2014 was $14,899,383

 
 
NOTE 6 – OPERATING LEASES 
 
Omnitrans leases facilities and tires under noncancelable operating leases.  Total costs for such leases were 
$441,516 during the year ended June 30, 2014.  The future minimum lease payments for these leases are as 
follows: 

Year Ending
June 30, Total

2015 696,116$       
2016 519,932         
2017 305,660         
2018 15,390           
2019 7,695             
Total 1,544,793$    
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NOTE 7 – RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
Omnitrans is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors 
or omissions; and natural disasters for which they carry commercial insurance.  Liabilities are reported when it is 
probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.  Liabilities include an 
amount for claims that have been Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR).  Claim liabilities are calculated considering 
the effects of inflation, recent claim settlement trends including frequency and amount of payouts and other 
economic and social factors.  The outstanding claims at June 30, 2014 were estimated to be $9,493,032 and were 
based on an IBNR study performed in fiscal year 2013-2014.  Changes in the fund claims liability amount for the 
last two fiscal years are as follows: 
 

Year Ending Beginning of Provisions of Claim End of Year
June 30, Year Liability Claims Payments Liability

2013 10,725,999$        5,628,983$          (3,244,517)$         13,110,465$        
2014 13,110,465          (3,486,199)           (131,234)              9,493,032             

 
Omnitrans is a member of the Association of California Public Transit Operators Joint Powers Insurance 
Authority (Authority).  The Authority is a risk-pooling self-insurance authority, created under provisions of 
California law in 1987.  The purpose of the Authority is to arrange and administer programs of insurance for the 
pooling of self-insured losses and to purchase excess insurance coverage. 
 
At June 30, 2014, Omnitrans’ participation in the self-insurance programs of the Authority is as follows: 
 

 General Liability: Omnitrans is self-insured up to $1,000,000 per occurrence and has purchased re-
insurance and excess insurance coverage. 

 Automobile Liability: Omnitrans is self-insured up to $1,000,000 per occurrence and has purchased re-
insurance and excess insurance coverage. 

 Public Officials Errors and Omissions: Omnitrans is self-insured up to $1,000,000 per occurrence and has 
purchased re-insurance and excess insurance coverage. 

 Vehicle Collision and Comprehensive Liability:  Insured up to actual cash value of covered vehicles up to 
$10,000,000 per occurrence subject to per vehicle deductibles.  The Authority has purchased excess 
insurance coverage. 

Separate financial statements of the Authority can be obtained at 1415 L Street, Suite 200, Sacramento, California 
95814. 
 



OMNITRANS 
 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 
 
 

29 

NOTE 7 – RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 
 
Omnitrans has also purchased additional insurance coverage outlined below: 
 

 Workers Compensation Liability: Omnitrans is self-insured for workers’ compensations claims up to 
$1,000,000 with a limit of liability of $5,000,000 and excess coverage up to $95,000,000. 

 

 Property Liability: Omnitrans is self-insured for property damage up to $25,000 for Electronic Data 
Processing Equipment and $10,000 for all other losses per occurrence, with limit of liability up to 
$32,522,360.  Omnitrans has also purchased earthquake and flood coverage for damage, for which it is 
self-insured up to $25,000 for an earthquake and $50,000 for a flood per occurrence, with a limit of 
liability of $10,000,000 and excess coverage of $10,000,000. 

 

 Crime Liability: Omnitrans is self-insured for employee dishonesty and theft up to $1,000 per occurrence, 
with a limit of liability up to $50,000. 

 

 Pollution Remediation Liability: Omnitrans is self-insured for pollution remediation claims up to $50,000 
per occurrence and $150,000 in aggregate, with a limit of liability of $5,000,000 per occurrence and 
$10,000,000 in aggregate. 

 

 Employment Related Practices Liability: Omnitrans is self-insured for employment related practices 
liability claims up to $50,000 with a limit of liability of $1,000,000 

 
For the past three fiscal years, none of the above programs of protections has had settlements or judgments that 
exceeded pooled or insured coverage.   
 
 
NOTE 8 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 
 
Plan Description 

 
Omnitrans contributes to the California Public Employees Retirement System (PERS), an agent multiple-
employer public employee defined benefit pension plan.  PERS provides retirement, disability benefits, and death 
benefits to plan members and beneficiaries.  PERS acts as a common investment and administrative agent for 
participating public entities within the State of California.  Copies of PERS’ annual financial report may be 
obtained from their executive office: 400 Q Street, Sacramento, California 95811. 
 
Funding Policy 
 
Participants are required to contribute 7% of their annual covered salary.  Omnitrans makes the contributions 
required of Omnitrans’ employees on their behalf and for their account.  The contribution requirements of the plan 
members and Omnitrans are established and may be amended by PERS. 
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NOTE 8 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 
 
Annual Pension Cost 

 
Under GASB Statement No. 27 as amended by GASB Statement No. 50, an employer reports an Annual Pension 
Cost (APC) equal to the Annual Required Contribution (ARC).  The ARC for the period July 1, 2013 to June 30, 
2014 has been determined by an actuarial valuation of the plan as of June 30, 2011.  The contribution rate 
indicated for the period is 10.666% of payroll.  In order to calculate the dollar value of the ARC for inclusion in 
financial statements prepared as of June 30, 2014, this contribution rate, as modified by any amendments for the 
year, is multiplied by the payroll of covered employees that were actually paid during the period from July 1, 
2013 to June 30, 2014. 
 

Annual Pension Percentage of
Fiscal Year Cost (APC) APC Contribution
6/30/2012 3,050,337$          100%
6/30/2013 2,919,958            100%
6/30/2014 2,923,429            100%

Three Year Trend Information

 
A summary of principal assumptions and methods used to determine the ARC is shown below. 
 
Valuation Date June 30, 2011
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization Method Level Percent of Payroll
Average Remaining Period 23 Years as of the Valuation Date
Asset Valuation Method 15 Year Smoothed Market
Actuarial Assumptions:

Investment Rate of Return 7.50% (net of administrative expenses)
Projected Salary Increases 3.30% to 14.20% depending on age, service, and type of employment
Inflation 2.75%
Payroll Growth 3.00%
Individual Salary Growth A merit scale varying by duration of employment coupled with an 

assumed annual inflation component of 2.75% and an annual
production growth of 0.25%.

 
Initial unfunded liabilities are amortized over a closed period that depends on the plan’s date of entry into 
CalPERS.  Subsequent plan amendments are amortized as a level percentage of pay over a closed 20-year period.  
Gains and losses that occur in the operation of the plan are amortized over a rolling period, which results in an 
amortization of 6% of unamortized gains and losses each year.  If the plan’s accrued liability exceeds the actuarial 
value of plan assets, then the amortization payment on the total unfunded liability may not be lower than the 
payment calculated over a 30 year amortization period. 
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NOTE 8 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 
 
Funded Status and Funding Progress  
 
As of June 30, 2012, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 96.9% percent funded.  The actuarial 
accrued liability for benefits was $118,695,040, and the actuarial value of assets was $115,044,920, resulting in 
an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $3,650,120.  The covered payroll (annual payroll of active 
employees covered by the plan) was $28,396,286, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 12.9%.  
 
The Schedule of Funding Progress presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the 
financial statements, presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is 
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits. 
 
 
NOTE 9 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 

Litigation 
 

Omnitrans is subject to lawsuits and claims which arise out of the normal course of business.  In the opinion of 
management, based upon the opinion of legal counsel, the disposition of such actions of which it is aware will not 
have a material effect on the financial position, results of operations or liquidity of Omnitrans. 
 

Contingencies 
 

Omnitrans has received federal and state funds for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit by 
grantor agencies.  Although, such audits could generate expenditure disallowances under the terms of the grants, 
in the opinion of management, any additional required reimbursement will not have a material effect on the 
financial position, results of operations or liquidity of Omnitrans. 
 

Commitments 
 

Commitments consist primarily of additions to operations equipment and building improvements.  Significant 
commitments are as follows: 
 

Cumulative
Amount Expenses Unexpended

Project Authorized June 30, 2014 Commitments
Facilities Future Expansion and Remodel 4,302,628$          3,860,121$          442,507$             
Computer Software and Hardware 2,333,919            2,333,231            688                      
E Street Bus Rapid Transit 151,582,493        122,890,127        28,692,366          
E Street Bus Rapid Transit - Right of Way 11,863,335          11,656,852          206,483               
E Street Bus Rapid Transit - Vehicle Maintenance Facility 12,842,125          8,537,338            4,304,787            
San Bernardino Transit Center 23,517,283          10,423,424          13,093,859          
Vehicle  & Shop Equipment 2,750,941            2,272,179            478,762               

Total major components of construction in progress 209,192,724$      161,973,272$      47,219,452$        
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NOTE 10 – PASS-THROUGH GRANTS 
 

Pass-through activity for the year ended June 30, 2014 is summarized as follows: 
 

Central City Lutheran 36,786$             
Chaffey College (8,593)                
City of Chino 6,195                 
City of Highland 9,576                 
City of Needles 3,600,457          
City of Ontario 5,208                 
City of Rialto 189,672             
City of Yucaipa 34,389               
Inland Empire United Way 57,085               
LLUMC Adult Day Health Services 36,606               
Pomona Valley Community Services 80,839               
Pomona Valley Workshop 221,714             
Valley Transportation Services 180,321             
Victor Valley 9,216                 

4,459,471$        

 
 
NOTE 11 – NET POSITION 

 
The following is a detailed breakdown of net position.   
 

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 245,580,650$    
Less:  Debt offsetting capital assets (268,269)            
Net investment in capital assets 245,312,381      
Unrestricted net position 9,379,178          

Total net position 254,691,559$    

 
As of June 30, 2014, management has set aside reserves in the amount of $9,379,178, included within unrestricted 
net position, for the following:  
 

Bus transit operations, workers
  compensation and general liability contingencies 9,379,178$        

Total unrestricted net position 9,379,178$        
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Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) 
 
The following schedule summarizes Omnitrans’ funding progress for the PERS plan: 
 

Entry Age Unfunded/
Normal Actuarial Actuarial Annual UAAL

Valuation Accrued Value of Accrued Funded Covered as a %
Date Liability Assets Liability (UAAL) Status Payroll of Payroll

6/30/2010 102,163,260$       97,503,157$       4,633,103$  95.5% 30,956,894$       15.0%
6/30/2011 109,878,995         106,437,254       3,441,741    96.9% 28,202,757         12.2%
6/30/2012 118,695,040         115,044,920       3,650,120    96.9% 28,396,286         12.9%
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STATISTICAL SECTION 
 
 
This section of Omnitrans’ Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents detailed 
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial 
statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information say about 
Omnitrans’ overall financial health.  This information has not been audited by the 
independent auditors. 
 
            Page 
 
Financial Trends          35  

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader 
understand how the Omnitrans financial performance and well-being 
has changed over time. 
 
 

Revenue Capacity          37 
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess 
Omnitrans’ most significant local revenue source, passenger fares. 
 
 

The Economy and Economic Outlook       38 
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicator to help 
the reader understand the environment within Omnitrans’ financial 
activities take place. 
 
 

Operating Information         44 
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the 
reader understand how the information in Omnitrans’ financial report 
relates to the services Omnitrans provides and the activities it 
performs. 
 
 
 
 

Source:  Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules derived from the 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports for the relevant years.   
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THE ECONOMY AND ECONOMIC OUTLOOK 
 
San Bernardino and Riverside Counties comprise the Inland Empire.  San Bernardino County is the 
largest county in the nation in terms of total land area.  Unfortunately the Inland Empire was among the 
nation's hardest hit local economies during the Great Recession, with a considerable number of 
foreclosures and one of the highest jobless rates in California.  But the Inland Empire is now one of the 
fastest growing regions in Southern California, a trend predicted to continue over the next five years, 
according to a recent economic forecast. 
 
Almost every major industry in the Inland Empire has added jobs since the region hit bottom.  The 
availability of land for development, combined with proximity to ports and major transportation corridors, 
has given San Bernardino and Riverside counties a growth advantage over more built-out coastal areas 
over the last two years.  
 
Unlike the housing bubble of the mid-2000s when much of the Inland Empire's job growth was tied to 
construction and real estate, the economic recovery has been spread across a wider range of 
industries, such as professional services and goods distribution. 
 
Over the last year, Inland Empire jobs have increased 2.7%, a faster rate than any part of California 
except the Bay Area. That is more than double the rate of Los Angeles County, and nearly triple the 
pace of nearby Orange County.  Economists predict the Inland Empire will add jobs at an even faster 
rate in future years, about 3.4% annually over the next five years. 
 
Driving that growth are major gains at both ends of the income scale: the lower-paying leisure and 
hospitality sector was one of the fastest-growing industries, but there was even more rapid growth in 
the high-end professional services sector, which includes consultants, lawyers and accountants. 
 
The average annual wage in the Inland Empire is at $41,314, significantly lower than the state average 
of $57,121, but the forecast highlighted that some of the biggest growth sectors in the region 
(professional services, trade and transportation) are also among the highest paying. More than 55% of 
the Inland Empire jobs added over the last year were in industries with average annual pay above 
$40,000. 
 
The Inland Empire still had an unemployment rate of 8.2% as of September, higher than the state's rate 
of 7.3%. One of the biggest bright spots going forward, according to the report, is the Inland Empire's 
status as a major shipping and distribution point for Southern California and the nation. 
 
Amazon.com, for instance, opened its second major fulfillment center in Moreno Valley this year. The 
facility serves as a hub for delivery of merchandise throughout the region. The company is planning to 
build another facility in the Inland Empire.  The region also serves as a distribution hub for goods 
delivered to and from the ports of Los Angeles and Long Beach, which have both seen a surge in 
volume over the last year.  
 
One thing noticeably different about the Inland Empire's recent growth, compared with the boom years 
of the mid-2000s, is the performance of the construction sector.  The industry lost more than 75,000 
jobs in the Inland Empire and is still years away from regaining them, but the outlook for the region 
predicts construction to be one of the largest contributors to economic growth moving forward.  This 
growth will be driven by an increase in demand for housing in a region that is significantly more 
affordable in the Inland Empire than the rest of Southern California. 
 
Source:  The Sun, LA Times 
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Route Route Name
  Fontana – Ontario Mills – Pomona
  Chino – Ontario – Upland
  Montclair – Chino Hills
  Fontana – Foothill Blvd – Montclair
  Montclair – Baseline – Fontana
  Chino – Montclair – Chaffey College
  Montclair – Ont Conv Cntr – Chaffey College
  Ontario – Ontario Mills – Chaffey College
  Rancho Cucamonga – Fontana – Sierra Lakes
  Upland – Euclid – Chino
  OmniGo Chino/Chino Hills

61
63
65
66
67
68
80
81
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365

Demand Response Service
What Is It?
A curb-to-curb transportation service 
provided by Omnitrans.

OmniLink connects you to the outlying 
communities of Yucaipa and Chino Hills.

How To Schedule Your Ride
You can request a ride and decide the time 
and place within our service hours and area 
(see maps on this page) in advance. 
Reservations are required for OmniLink 
service, and you can make reservations by 
calling one of the following phone numbers, 
7:00 AM - 6:00 PM, Monday - Friday:

Chino Hills   1-800-330-6424
Yucaipa        1-800-990-2406

Please note:  Telephone reservations begin 
30 minutes before service begins and ends 30 
minutes before service ends.  If you cannot 
make your trip, please call to cancel at least 
two hours before the scheduled pickup time. 

Fares
Full Fare    $3.00
Seniors/Persons with Disabilities $1.50
Students    $2.00
Children, limit 2 (UP TO 46”)    FREE
Transfers to Omnitrans buses  FREE

OmniLink tickets can also be purchased 
online at www.omnitrans.org.

Free Transfers
You can transfer FREE to Omnitrans Route 65 
and 365 within Chino Hills and Routes 8, 9, 308 
and 309 within Yucaipa.  Just ask your driver to 
issue you a transfer.  Your transfer will be good 
for two hours to exchange for an Omnitrans Day 
Pass.  A Day Pass allows unlimited travel 
throughout  the Omnitrans system.  Your transfer 
will not be good for another trip on OmniLink.

For more information about OmniLink service, 
please call 1-800-9-OMNIBUS (1-800-966-7628).

For Persons With Disabilities
Access is a public, pre-scheduled service that provides curb-to-curb service 
upon request to people are who unable to use Omnitrans fixed route bus 
service due to a physical or cognitive disability.  The Access service area is 
defined as up to 3/4 mile on either side of an existing bus route. 
To qualify for Access service, you must meet one of the conditions established 
by the American with Disabilities Act (ADA) and have an ADA certification card.  
Eligibility for the ADA card is determined through an application process.  For 
more information, visit omnitrans.org or call (909)379-7284.

ROUTE 308 ROUTE 309
Note:

The Route 308 loop travels counter-clockwise;
the Route 309 and 310 loop travels clockwise.

OmniLink 
Service Area
Omnitrans 
Routes 8 & 9
OmniGo
Route 308/309

ROUTE 308 ROUTE 309
Note:

The Route 308 loop travels counter-clockwise;
the Route 309 and 310 loop travels clockwise.

YUCAIPA BLVD.

Yucaipa 
Community 
Park

Yucaipa Regional
Parks

FIR

Competitive Edge
Charter Academy
STONEWOOD WAY

Stater Bros.

TAHOE

8 9 YUCAIPA BLVD.
8, 9, 308/309/310 

OmniLink

Yucaipa 
Transit Center

SU
NN

YS
ID

E

BR
YA

NT

5t
h

OAK GLEN
Ridgeview
Elementary
School

Parkview
Middle
School

El Dorado
MHP

Lakeview
MHP

SUNNYSIDE

CVS

Yucaipa
City Library
& Police

Yucaipa
Little
Theatre

Yucaipa 
News Mirror

Fire Station

OmniGo
310

7-Eleven

Faith Lutheran Church

WILDWOOD CANYON

AVE  H AVE  H

CA
LI

FO
RN

IA

AV B

COUNTY LINE ROAD

YUCAIPA BLVD.

WILDWOOD CANYON

5T
H

Norton Younglove
Senior Center

Post Office

1s
t

3r
d4t
h

W
alg

re
en

s

Pi
c n

 S
av

e

Yucaipa 
Senior 
Center

Sail Drug

Carriage Trade 
Manor MHP

Bryant Street
Baptist Church

2n
d

Skyline MHP
Mountain View 
MHP

Patrician Park
MHP

Bonanza 
MHP

Wishing Well MHP

Westwood Well MHP

Ac
e 

Ha
rd

wa
re

CA
LIF

OR
NI

A

AVAV

CA
LI

FO
RN

IA

AV B

BR
YA

NT

2n
d

COUNTY LINE ROAD

YUCAIPA BLVD.

5T
H

B

A

St. Francis of Carbrini
Catholic Church

AVE E

Valero Gas Station

Stater 
Bros.

7-Eleven

Twin Peaks Mobile 
Home Park

CommunityBank

St. Albans Episcopal 
Church

AVE D

Arco 
Gas

AVE E

Fire Dept.

Yucaipa Baptist 
Church

OmniGo
308/309

2n
d

4t
h 3r
d

Citibank

Chase

Crafton 
Hills College

Green Valley
Church

DATE

Executive
MHE

AD
AM

S

North View
MHP

C

PEACH 
TREE

2n
d

 OAK GLEN

SCHAEFER RANCH

Scherer Community Center

309

308

OmniGo
Route 310

Ci
ty 

Lim
it

Condit

Calimesa Blvd

R
O

LL
IN

G
 R

ID
G

E

Townsend Jr. High 
School

CONNECTING
OUR COMMUNITY



Santa Ana River

Boulder Ave

M
et

ro
lin

k—
In

la
nd

 E
m

pi
re

-
O

ra
ng

e 
Co

un
ty

 L
in

e

BV
LINK

VVTA
BV

LINK

RTA14

Highland

Lynwood

St
er

lin
g 

21st

G
ol

de
n

W
at

er
m

an

5th St

2nd St

M
t V

er
no

n 

C St
E 

St
G

 S
t

F 
St

D
 S

t
E 

St

UniversityKendall

Ti
pp

ec
an

oe
A

nd
er

so
n

ProspectUniversity

Be
nt

on

Hospitality LnValley Blvd
Redlands Blvd

Baseline Rd

Casa Grande

Baseline Rd

C
itr

us
 A

ve
C

itr
us

 A
ve

Foothill Blvd

Redlands Blvd

State

9th St9th St

A
la

ba
m

a
A

la
ba

m
a

Ca
lif

or
ni

a

16th

27th

W
at

er
m

an

Le
na

Citrus Ave

Barton Brookside
5th Ave

5th St
5th St

W
ab

as
h

Pa
lm

Ce
nt

ra
l

C
hu

rc
h

Bo
ul

de
r

Cr
af

to
n

Pi
ne

Northpark

 P
al

m

 E
le

ct
ric

 L
itt

le
 M

tn

Ohio

40th

Gilbert
Pacific

Eureka

3rd St

Sheppard

MillMill

D
el

 R
os

a
D

el
 R

os
a

Lugonia Ave

O
ra

ng
e

O
ra

ng
e

Yucaipa Blvd

Ca
lif

or
in

a

5t
h

2n
d

1s
t

Sand Canyon

48th/42nd

E 
St

M
ou

nt
ai

n

Si
er

ra
 W

ay
A

rr
ow

he
ad

Arrow

Ogden

Blake

Bohnert

Ve
rm

on
t

 S
ta

te
 S

t

Highland Ave

M
ed

ic
al

 C
en

te
r D

r

M
us

cu
pi

ab
e 

Si
er

ra

4th St

San Bernardino

Merrill Avel Eu
ca

ly
pt

us

Rialto Ave Rialto Ave

Blue
Olive

Randall

Ju
ni

pe
r

Si
er

ra Slover

A
ld

er

Riverside Ave

Ri
ve

rs
id

e

Lo
cu

st

Liv
e O

ak

A
ld

er
 

Li
nd

en

San Bernardino Ave

W
ild

ro
se

 

Pe
pp

er

Valley Blvd

Lo
cu

st
La

ur
el

Ce
da

r
Ce

da
r

G
re

en

Sp
ru

ce

Slover

Santa Ana

11th

Sierra Lakes Pkwy

M
t V

er
no

n 

Palm 

Ra
nc

ho
 

La
 C

ad
en

a

O St

M St11
th

Ca
m

pu
s

M
ou

nt
ai

n 
Vi

ew

University

Mission Inn

M
ar

ke
t

Fa
irm

on
t

M
ic

hi
ga

n

Barton

Barton Rd

Washington

TerraVista

rtis

mit

 M
t V

er
no

n

Walnut St

County Line Rd.

W
al

ke
r

Center

Flynn

Br
ya

nt

Sunnysidez

Su
nn

ys
id

e

Oak Glen Rd.

A
da

m
s

Ave B

Br
ya

nt

VVTA
BV

LINK

VVTA
BV

LINK

TC

TC

TC

TC

TC
7th Street

Park

Yucaipa
Regional Park

Community
Park

CYSA
Soccer

Park

Jurupa Hills
Regional Park

Jerry Eaves
Park

North
Park

Fergusson
Park

Glen Helen
Regional Park

Wildwood
Park

Frisbie
Park

Colony
Park

Veterans Memorial
Park South

Kessler
Park

RIALTO

COLTON

SAN
BERNARDINO

GRAND
TERRACE

RIVERSIDE

LOMA
LINDA

REDLANDS

HIGHLAND

YUCAIPA

1

1

67

9

9

511

22

22

2

2

14

14

29

7

15
15

19

15

19

7

8215

3/4 3/4

3/4

3/4

215

10 10

10

10

82

20

61

66

82

8

210

210

215

215

10

Cal State
San Bernardino

SB Valley
College

Crafton Hills
College

RTA
Downtown

Terminal

University of
Redlands

For more information about
OmniLink service, see back panel.

Citrus
Plaza

Arrowhead
Credit Union
Stadium

County
Health Dept

Tri City
Center

Redlands
Mall

San Bernardino
International Airport

Patton
HospitalSt. Bernardine

Medical Center

San Bernardino
Community

Hospital

Arrowhead Regional
Medical CenterKaiser

Hospital

Loma
Linda

Med Ctr
VA

Hospital

Redlands
Community

Hospital

Nolan

309

310

2 0 3

Mile

Routes and schedules are subject to change without notice.

Route Listing
Route Route Name
  ARMC – San Bernardino Del Rosa
  Cal St – E St – Loma Linda
  Baseline – Highland – San Bdno
  San Bernardino – Del Rosa – Cal State
  N San Bdno – Sierra Way – San Bdno 
  San Bdno – Mentone – Yucaipa
  San Bernardino – Redlands – Yucaipa
  Fontana – Baseline – San Bernardino
  San Bernardino – Muscoy – Cal State
  Fontana – Foothill – San Bernardino
  Fontana – San Bernardino/Highland – Redlands
  Fontana – Colton – Redlands
  Fontana – Metrolink – Via Hemlock – Kaiser
  North Rialto – Riverside Ave – ARMC
  Bloomington – Valley Blvd – Kaiser
  Fontana – Ontario Mills – Pomona
  Chino – Ontario – Upland
  Montclair – Chino Hills
  Fontana – Foothill Blvd – Montclair
  Montclair – Baseline – Fontana
  Chino – Montclair – Chaffey College
  Montclair – Ont Conv Cntr – Chaffey College
  Ontario – Ontario Mills – Chaffey College
  Rancho Cucamonga – Fontana – Sierra Lakes
  Upland – Euclid – Chino
  San Bernardino – Riverside
  OmniGo Yucaipa
  OmniGo Yucaipa
  OmniGo Grand Terrace
  OmniGo Chino/Chino Hills

1
2
3/4
5
7
8
9
10
11
14
15
19
20
22
29
61
63
65
66
67
68
80
81
82
83
215

Bus Route

Tripper Service

Long-term Detour

Metrolink

Metrolink Station OmniLink Service Area
(Demand Reponse Service) 
For more information, call
Chino Hills: 1-800-330-6424
or Yucaipa: 1-800-990-2406

TransCenter
(Timed Transfers)

Landmark

Hospital

Interstate

State Highway

Smartmaps
Effective: January 2013
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Boarding the bus

minutes before the bus is 

next to the Omnitrans bus stop 

the closest safe place to stop, 
and then you can board the bus.

your bus fare ready. Omnitrans 
drivers do not carry change.

eat on the bus.

Getting off the bus

like to exit the bus at the next 
stop by pressing the rubber strip 

rear doors. For your safety, 

stopped.

For complete route 
and schedule 

information call:
1-800-9-OMNIBUS
(1-800-966-6428)

www.omnitrans.org

Effective Date: May 6, 2013
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